
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

February 27, 2018 
M I N U T E S  

Present: George Sterling Adam Hamilton, Martha Schaefer and James Kelly  

Also Present: Laura Norton, Administrative Assistant, Office of Community 
Development.   

Chair Sterling called the meeting to order at 7:30 a.m. “Welcome to the February 
meeting of the EDA, let’s start with introductions” he said.  

Minutes: 

Chair Sterling noted “we don’t have a quorum so we won’t be able to vote on the 
January Minutes”  

Request for funds: the First NH Honeybee Mural: 

Melissa Stephenson introduced herself and Kin Schilling and began by explaining 
a project they have been moving forward. “We are here to get your support in 
some way or another” she said. Ms. Stephenson noted an effort by New York-
based artist Matt Willey to raise awareness about the plight of the humble honey 
bee and his goal to personally paint 50,000 bees (what is typically takes to sustain 
a hive) in murals around the world. “It is really a plight for all pollinators, not just 
bees” she said adding “Jeff King (Peterborough Recreation Director) has been 
wonderful and he has committed the south facing wall of the Community Center 
for the mural. This is a huge landmark for Peterborough.” Ms. Stephenson and Ms. 
Schilling went on to briefly discuss the educational and community benefits that 
come with the mural adding the mural stays up until his goal has been 
accomplished. “This is a huge opportunity” said Ms. Stephenson adding “but he is 
not a non-profit so I have been working on a house and a car for him, and he needs 
to get paid.” Ms. Schilling reiterated the involvement of children and the 
community in the project noting the awareness that pollinators “are responsible for 
80% of our food.” Ms. Schilling went on to explain Mr. Willey had painted murals 
in science museums, barns and elementary schools and that the materials used were 
resilient to weather and graffiti. Ms. Stephenson concluded “we wanted to be sure 
you knew about it and supporting it in any way would be fabulous.” When asked 
about the cost Ms. Stephenson replied $1,500.00 to commission, and $3,500.00 to 
secure the contract “and then $15,000.00 to support his stay, assistants and all that 
goes along with it. Your support would be so appreciated and so helpful.” Ms. 
Schilling interjected they were working on a brochure-type handout with more 
information on the project. 

Chair Sterling referenced an email he had received for Select Board member 
Barbara Miller. He noted the email expressed it would be difficult at best to use 



EDA Meeting Minutes                                   February 27, 2018 Page 2 of 6 

taxpayer money to provide a sponsorship but noted we could consider posting the 
project on the EDA Website and could promote the project through his personal 
Twitter account. Ms. Dietsch interjected with a smile “I hope you get a table at 
Greenerborough and that you are honing in on pollinating all the town groups with 
information.” Noting the Labyrinth and the Children and the Arts events Ms. 
Stephenson concluded “this is such a Peterborough thing.” 

Peterborough Chamber of Commerce Director Sean Ryan noted several leads for 
grants and funding including the New Hampshire Department of Agriculture’s 
mini grant program, the Department of Cultural and Natural Resources (crossing 
the line between agriculture and the arts promotion) and Arts Alive! He noted a 
similar endeavor by Robert Wyland painting marine murals featuring life-size 
whales and other sea life. He also cautioned they should have an agreement for 
mural repairs and touchups. Karen Hatcher noted the marketing and economic 
benefit of the mural as a point of interest to draw people to town and suggested 
“creative funding for things that have value, we need to do things to promote it” 
and with a smile concluded “it is a sweet idea with a lot of ancillary benefits.” 

As she distributed a No Bees – No Food handout Ms. Stephenson noted “Matt’s 
(Mr. Willey) mission is to raise awareness of the importance of honeybees as 
pollinators. 

Strategic Marketing/Branding Project Update: 

Chair Sterling reviewed the current status of Broadband vis-à-vis a whitepaper 
from the Town that was sent to Congresswoman Ann Kuster’s office. Ms. Dietsch 
gave a brief update on the Broadband bill headed the House for a hearing in 
March. She told the members “Senator Hasson is working on it with the utilities 
companies and we do expect it to pass.” 

Ms. Dietsch went on to update the members on the Branding Project as she read an 
update from Dawn Wivell who is finalizing the review of materials gathered by the 
EDA Committee, the town, and the sub-committee working on the project. She 
noted she was simultaneously conducting interviews and information/data 
gathering and research; inclusive of stakeholders, potential resources, outside 
influencers and opinions. She noted interviews both in person and by phone in 
Peterborough, Concord and Boston and that she would be back in Peterborough 
this afternoon to focus more on businesses and the Chamber and do some 
additional touring. Ms. Dietsch told the members Ms. Wivell anticipated having 
the first deliverable submitted within the next two weeks, which will be the SWOT 
(Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats) Analysis Report and Action 
Plan (and) was preparing for the development of the Peterborough Ecosystem 
Group which is the second deliverable.  



EDA Meeting Minutes                                   February 27, 2018 Page 3 of 6 

 

Workforce Development:  

Tabled as Mr. Galus was not present. 

Online Promotion: 

Marketing Subcommittee Chairman Christine Dennler gave a brief update on the 
status of the online promotion RFQ. “The RFQ is to implement a social media 
program consisting of a daily blurb and a 60-90 second video quarterly” she said 
adding “we got nine responses.” She briefly reviewed the responses, all of which 
contained a lot of upselling “so we decided to a focus on Instagram and a request 
of three of the firms to submit samples and costs with a deadline of March 7th.” 
When asked who the finalist were, Ms. Dennler replied “Millenium Agency, 
SuperDigital and a local woman a.” Mr. Hamilton suggested Nate from Vicuna 
Chocolate sit in on the review with Ms. Dennler agreeing he would be welcome to 
do so. [Editor’s note: there were five firms that were invited to submit samples and 
specific quoted as follows: Millenium, Super Digital, Air Tank, Drum, and Linda 
West.]  

Zoning Ordinance Update: Zoning Simplification, ADUs, Solar and 
Groundwater: 

Zoning Simplification: Planning Board Chairman Ivy Vann reviewed the proposed 
zoning change noting “we have been working on this from the West Peterborough 
District remodel to the Traditional Neighborhood Overlay Zone (twelve to four 
years ago) to build more of the town we really love.” She told the members the 
proposed zoning would allow growth in an organized way, make sure it (growth) 
was incremental and to scale with the fashion of the town. She noted unlike the 
present zoning “there will not be any parcels split with multiple district boundaries, 
“like the past 48 years.” 

Ms. Vann noted the Planning Board had moved the amendment to ballot on 
February 19th but citing RSA 675:7 Notice Requirements for Public Hearing and 
because some zoning boundary lines had been changed, the Town Attorney had 
advised another noticed Public Hearing which was scheduled for March 12th. Ms. 
Vann then reviewed the five Transect District of the new zoning. 

 Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs): Ms. Vann reviewed the current requirement 
that ADUs be no smaller than 400 square feet and no larger than 750 square feet or 
30% (whichever is bigger) of the larger unit floor area and that one of the units 



EDA Meeting Minutes                                   February 27, 2018 Page 4 of 6 

must be owner occupied. She went on to tell the members “this has to be registered 
at the Registry of Deeds and it is problematic in that people do not do it (and) in 
the same district, across the street you may have a duplex where this is not 
required. “I find us creating two classes of the same people and I find that 
troubling so we want to eliminate the owner occupancy for ADUs.” She concluded 
by noting the Board has broken this amendment out of the zoning simplification 
amendment to create a standalone amendment. 

Solar Ordinance: Ms. Vann began “we welcome solar, we want to promote and 
enable the development and distribution of solar energy collection systems (not 
commercial generation) in appropriate locations” adding “and you can capture 
twice as much solar as you use yourself.” A brief discussion about the new 
ordinance limiting solar arrays to one megawatt followed. For the record Chair 
Sterling asked “why do we want to regulate solar?” Ms. Vann replied “because 
what we have now is permissive code. Somewhere it has to say you can do it, it is 
permissive, like Mother may I?  She went on to note a larger solar field’s 
environmental and visual impacts adding “we have to have a way to site them 
correctly and make sure the impacts are properly mitigated.” 

Groundwater: Ms. Vann simply said “we are just fixing an over sight here.” 

Mr. Hamilton interjected “I love this Ivy” adding “we got some bad press about the 
drive-thrus where is the good press about this?” Ms. Vann noted much of the 
zoning had not changed.  “We cleaned it up and made it more user-friendly” she 
said as she distributed copies of the Zoning Simplification and You (an 
informational brochure on how to use the new zoning). “Often it is not the use 
itself but the scale of the use. You pick your permitted use and an appropriate 
building type in your district and you are good to go” she said. Mr. Hamilton asked 
“is it just for residential? With Ms. Vann replying “no, it is for everything.” In 
closing Ms. Vann reiterated the Overlay Districts (including the Business/Industry, 
Commerce Park, Monadnock Community Hospital Healthcare and Retirement 
District remained unchanged. Once again Mr. Hamilton asked about what to do for 
some good press with Ms. Dietsch volunteering to write a press release explaining 
all the amazing benefits. Ms. Vann noted “it is really cool and we will be the first 
town in New Hampshire to have fully form based code.” She noted Portsmouth 
New Hampshire had adopted form based code “but only for their Downtown. We 
have had a lot of positive feedback on it. I think it will be a huge change for us.” 
Ms. Dietsch noted the financial out-of-pocket expenses for classes Ms. Vann had 
taken over the past year telling the members “we have to give her kudos for this.” 
The audience replied with applause for Ms. Vann. 



EDA Meeting Minutes                                   February 27, 2018 Page 5 of 6 

Greenerborough Update: 

Ms. Dietsch gave a brief review of the strategic plan for the rekindle of 
Greenerborough. Citing the town’s claim as a leader in energy sustainability and 
home of the state’s largest solar array she asked “what else have we got to 
demonstrate our commitment?” adding “a relaunch of Greenerborough.” She told 
the members she’s worked with the Chamber to overcome the differences that 
caused the event to be dropped. She noted the outside vendors selling to locals “is 
backwards to the EDA. We are reorganizing it to use it as a branding mechanism 
for Peterborough which also meets the workforce attraction goal.” 

Ms. Dietsch told the members the event would also sponsor a “greener day” with 
the fair from 9:00 to 4:00 at the Community Center with Peterborough-themed 
activities (including MAxT, the Cornucopia Project and the Honeybee Mural), 
programs and exhibitors and a continuation of the event in the Downtown with a 
collaboration of the Monadnock Center for History & Culture, the Mariposa 
Museum and the Downtown restaurants, merchants and retailers. She emphasized 
advertising the event outside the region (Manchester to Boston) “and we are asking 
the EDA to become a partner and be a sponsor. It is a $2000.00 ask” she said. 
Despite the lack of a quorum for a vote Chair Sterling suggested they first follow 
up with the Board of Selectmen about sponsorships. A brief discussion about 
supporting the Peterborough Welcome Team followed with the members agreeing 
the Welcome Team had been adopted as an extension of the EDA. 

Ms. Dietsch noted the event is coordinated by volunteers but it needs to be 
advertised. “The Town needs to put money where its mouth is” she said adding 
“we need money to advertise.” 

Mr. Ryan suggested they review and present the economic feasibility and impact 
the event will have on the town. Ms. Schaefer asked about other sponsorships with 
Ms. Dietsch replying they have 30 Exhibitors, one $1000.00 Sponsor with the 
hopes of getting two more and as well as three $500.00 Sponsors and other smaller 
denomination donations. “We are working to make it a break-even project, I will 
bring the number next month” she said. When Mr. Hamilton asked “who is the 
team?” Ms. Dietsch reviewed the members with Mr. Ryan being their 501C3 
Fiscal Agent. Noting a follow-up on sponsorships with taxpayer money and 
whether or not that is appropriate Mr. Kelly interjected “I think that is the wrong 
label, this is a partnership.” Mr. Hamilton interjected he thought the only way a 
sponsorship would work would be much like how the Peterborough Welcome 
Team is supported as an official extension of the EDA. Ms. Dietsch agreed with 



EDA Meeting Minutes                                   February 27, 2018 Page 6 of 6 

Mr. Kelly repeating “this is a partnership, and we would welcome being adopted as 
an official ongoing Committee of the EDA is a great idea.” Mr. Hamilton replied 
“that is not my idea, I am just saying that is the only way I can see this happening.” 

Ms. Schaefer asked “does this fit with our charter and mission?” Ms. Dietsch 
replied “the mission is to attract workforce and branding for the town.” Ms. 
Dennler recommended the Marketing Subcommittee define EDA guidelines on 
how funds are allocated with criteria acceptable to taxpayer funds. “That would be 
my recommendation” interjected Mr. Ryan as he went on to describe Portsmouth 
New Hampshire’s Market Square Days (a collaborative concept between the town 
and project managers of the event). “Let’s look at their relationship and see how 
they are funded, it works for them. They’ve done two things a year, First Night and 
Market Square Days for years.” When Mr. Ryan volunteered to reach out to that 
city and gather more information Mr. Hamilton replied “yes please.” 

Ms. Hatcher announced the next Peterborough Welcome Team Meet & Greet was 
scheduled for March 29th at Bass Hall from 7:00 to 8:30 p.m. noting all were 
invited.  

Mr. Hamilton concluded the meeting with a brief discussion on communication 
channels and dissemination of information, accountability and unresolved issues 
regarding management of resources. “It is not the fault of any one person” he said 
but added he’d like to see resolution as they move initiatives along.  

Other Business: 

Next Meeting: March 27, 2018   

The meeting adjourned at 8:40 a.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

  

Laura Norton 

Administrative Assistant 


